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order issued under paragraph (f) of this 
section shall remain in effect.

§ 705.11 Judicial review. 
Action taken pursuant to section 602 

of the Act is subject to judicial review 
as provided in section 603 of the Act.

§ 705.12 Effect on other regulations. 
(a) Nothing in this part shall be 

deemed to supersede any other order, 
regulation, or instruction which pro-
hibits discrimination on the grounds of 
race, color, or national origin in any 
program or situation to which this part 
is inapplicable, or prohibit discrimina-
tion on any other ground. 

(b) Forms and instructions. The re-
sponsible agency official shall issue 
and promptly make available to all in-
terested persons forms and detailed in-
structions and procedures for effec-
tuating this part as applied to pro-
grams to which this part applies and 
for which he is responsible. 

(c) Supervision and coordination. The 
responsible agency official may from 
time to time assign to officials of other 
departments or agencies of the Govern-
ment with the consent of such depart-
ments or agencies, responsibilities in 
connection with the effectuation of the 
purposes of Title VI of the Act and this 
part (other than responsibility for final 
decision as provided in § 705.10), includ-
ing the achievement of effective co-
ordination and maximum uniformity 
within the Water Resources Council 
and within the Executive Branch of the 
Government in the application of Title 
VI and this part to similar programs 
and in similar situations. Any action, 
taken, determination made, or require-
ments imposed by an official of another 
department or agency acting pursuant 
to an assignment of responsibility 
under this paragraph shall have the 
same effect as though such action had 
been taken by the responsible agency 
official.

PART 706—EMPLOYEE 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND CONDUCT

Subpart A—General Provisions

Sec.
706.101 Purpose. 
706.102 Definitions. 

706.103 Remedial action. 
706.104 Interpretation and advisory service.

Subpart B—Conduct and Responsibilities of 
Employees

706.201 Proscribed actions. 
706.202 Gifts, entertainment, and favors. 
706.203 Outside employment and activity. 
706.204 Financial interests. 
706.205 Misuse of information. 
706.206 Support of Council programs. 
706.207 Use of Government property. 
706.208 Indebtedness. 
706.209 Gambling, betting, and lotteries. 
706.210 Coercion. 
706.211 General conduct prejudicial to the 

Government. 
706.212 Miscellaneous statutory provisions.

Subpart C—Conduct and Responsibilities 
of Special Government Employees

706.301 Use of Government employment. 
706.302 Use of inside information. 
706.303 Gifts, entertainment, and favors. 
706.304 Applicability of other provisions.

Subpart D—Statements of Employment and 
Financial Interests

706.401 Employees required to submit state-
ments. 

706.402 Employee’s complaint on filing re-
quirements. 

706.403 Form of statements. 
706.404 Time for submission of statements. 
706.405 Supplementary statements. 
706.406 Interests of employees‘ relatives. 
706.407 Information not known by employ-

ees. 
706.408 Information not required. 
706.409 Opportunity for explanation of con-

flict or appearance of conflict. 
706.410 Confidentiality of statements. 
706.411 Effect of statements on other re-

quirements. 
706.412 Submission of statements by special 

Government employees. 
706.413 Submission of statements by River 

Basin Commission Chairmen.

AUTHORITY: Water Resources Planning Act, 
1965 (Sec. 402, Pub. L. 89–80, 79 Stat. 254 (42 
U.S.C. 1962d–1)); E.O. 11222 (30 FR 6469, 3 CFR 
Proc. 3279; as amended); 5 CFR Part 735 (33 
FR 12487).

SOURCE: 40 FR 32818, Aug. 4, 1975, unless 
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—General Provisions

§ 706.101 Purpose. 
The maintenance of unusually high 

standards of honesty, integrity, impar-
tiality, and conduct by employees and 
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special Government employees is es-
sential to assure the proper perform-
ance of the Water Resources Council’s 
(hereafter referred to as the Council) 
business and the maintenance of con-
fidence by citizens in their Govern-
ment. The avoidance of misconduct and 
conflicts of interest on the part of em-
ployees and special Government em-
ployees through informed judgment is 
indispensable to the maintenance of 
these standards. To accord with these 
concepts, this part sets forth the Coun-
cil’s regulations prescribing standards 
of conduct and responsibilities and gov-
erning statements of employment and 
financial interests for employees and 
special Government employees.

§ 706.102 Definitions. 

In this part: 
(a) Employee means the Director and 

an employee of the Council employed 
by the Director under the authority of 
§ 701.78(a)(4) of this chapter. 

(b) Special Government employee means 
a special Government employee as de-
fined in section 202 of Title 18 of the 
United States Code who is employed by 
the Council.

§ 706.103 Remedial action. 

(a) A violation of this part by an em-
ployee or special Government em-
ployee may be cause for remedial ac-
tion. Remedial action may include, but 
is not limited to: 

(1) Changes in assigned duties; 
(2) Divestment by the employee or 

special Government employee of his 
conflicting interest; 

(3) Disciplinary action which may be 
in addition to any penalty prescribed 
by law; or 

(4) Disqualification for a particular 
assignment. 

(b) Remedial action, whether discipli-
nary or otherwise, shall be effected in 
accordance with any applicable laws, 
Executive orders, and regulations.

§ 706.104 Interpretation and advisory 
service. 

The General Counsel will serve as 
Counselor for the purpose of providing 
interpretation and advisory assistance 
to the Council staff on matters covered 
in this Part 706.

Subpart B—Conduct and 
Responsibilities of Employees

§ 706.201 Proscribed actions. 
An employee shall avoid any action 

which might result in, or create the ap-
pearance of: 

(a) Using public office for private 
gain; 

(b) Giving preferential treatment to 
any person; 

(c) Impeding Government efficiency 
or economy; 

(d) Losing complete independence or 
impartiality; 

(e) Making a Government decision 
outside official channels; or 

(f) Affecting adversely the confidence 
of the public in the integrity of the 
Government.

§ 706.202 Gifts, entertainment, and fa-
vors. 

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs 
(b) and (c) of this section, an employee 
shall not solicit or accept, directly or 
indirectly, any gift, gratuity, favor, en-
tertainment, loan, or any other thing 
of monetary value, from a person who: 

(1) Has, or is seeking to obtain, con-
tractual or other business or financial 
relations with the Council; 

(2) Conducts operations or activities 
that are regulated by the Council; or 

(3) Has interests that may be sub-
stantially affected by the performance 
or nonperformance of his official duty. 

(b) The restrictions set forth in para-
graph (a) of this section do not apply 
to: 

(1) Obvious family or personal rela-
tionships, such as those between the 
employee and his parents, children, or 
spouse, when the circumstances make 
it clear that those relationships rather 
than the business of the persons con-
cerned are the motivating factors; 

(2) The acceptance of food and re-
freshments of nominal value on infre-
quent occasions in the ordinary course 
of a luncheon or dinner meeting or 
other meeting or on an inspection tour 
where an employee may be properly in 
attendance; 

(3) The acceptance of loans from 
banks or other financial institutions 
on customary terms to finance proper 
and usual activities of employees, such 
as home mortgage loans; and 
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(4) The acceptance of unsolicited ad-
vertising or promotional material, 
such as pens, pencils, note pads, cal-
endars, and other items of nominal in-
trinsic value. 

(c) An employee shall not solicit a 
contribution from another employee 
for a gift to an official superior, make 
a donation as a gift to an official supe-
rior, or accept a gift from an employee 
receiving less pay than himself (5 
U.S.C. 7351). However, this paragraph 
does not prohibit a voluntary gift of 
nominal value or donation in a nomi-
nal amount made on a special occasion 
such as marriage, illness, or retire-
ment. 

(d) An employee shall not accept a 
gift, present, decoration, or other thing 
from a foreign government unless au-
thorized by Congress as provided by the 
Constitution and in 5 U.S.C. 7342. 

(e) Neither this section nor § 706.203 
precludes an employee from receipt of 
bona fide reimbursement, unless pro-
hibited by law, for expenses of travel 
and such other necessary subsistence 
as is compatible with this part for 
which no Government payment or re-
imbursement is made. However, this 
paragraph does not allow an employee 
to be reimbursed, or payment to be 
made on his behalf, for excessive per-
sonal living expenses, gifts, entertain-
ment, or other personal benefits, nor 
does it allow an employee to be reim-
bursed by a person for travel on official 
business under Council orders when re-
imbursement is proscribed by Decision 
B–128527 of the Comptroller General 
dated March 7, 1967.

§ 706.203 Outside employment and ac-
tivity. 

(a) An employee shall not engage in 
outside employment or other outside 
activity not compatible with the full 
and proper discharge of the duties and 
responsibilities of his Government em-
ployment. Incompatible activities in-
clude, but are not limited to: 

(1) Acceptance of a fee, compensa-
tion, gift, payment of expense, or any 
other thing of monetary value in cir-
cumstances wherein acceptance may 
result in, or create the appearance of, a 
conflict of interest; 

(2) Outside employment or activity 
which tends to impair his mental or 

physical capacity to perform the duties 
and responsibilities of his position in 
an acceptable manner; 

(3) Outside employment or activity 
which is in violation of a statute, Exec-
utive order, or regulation, including 
applicable State and local statutes and 
ordinances. 

(b) Employees are encouraged to en-
gage in teaching, lecturing, and writ-
ing that is not prohibited by law, Exec-
utive Order 11222 of May 11, 1965, as 
amended by Executive Order 11590 of 
April 27, 1971, this part or other Council 
regulations. However, an employee 
shall not, either for or without com-
pensation, engage in teaching, lec-
turing, or writing, including teaching, 
lecturing, or writing for the purpose of 
the special preparation of a person or 
class of persons for an examination of 
the Civil Service Commission or Board 
of Examiners for the Foreign Service, 
that depends on information obtained 
as a result of his Government employ-
ment, except when that information 
has been made available to the general 
public or will be made available on re-
quest, or when the agency head gives 
written authorization for use of non-
public information on the basis that 
the use is in the public interest. 

(c) An employee shall not receive any 
salary or anything of monetary value 
from a private source as compensation 
for his services to the Government. 

(d) An employee shall not engage in 
outside work or activity which may be 
construed by the public to be official 
acts of the Council, or of a nature 
closely paralleling the work of the 
Council. 

(e) An employee who engages in any 
kind of outside paid employment on a 
substantially regular basis shall sub-
mit to his immediate supervisor a 
memorandum describing the employ-
ment and stating approximately how 
many hours per week he is so em-
ployed. The immediate supervisor shall 
forward the memorandum through the 
Director for inclusion in the employ-
ee’s Official Personnel Folder. 

(f) This section does not preclude an 
employee from: 

(1) Participation in the activities of 
national or State political parties not 
proscribed by law; 
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(2) Participation in the local self-gov-
ernment activities in the community 
in which he resides to the extent per-
mitted by law; or, 

(3) Participation in the affairs of, or 
acceptance of an award for meritorious 
public contribution or achievement 
given by, a charitable, religious, pro-
fessional, social, fraternal, nonprofit 
educational, recreational, public serv-
ice, or civic organization.

§ 706.204 Financial interests. 

(a) An employee shall not: 
(1) Have a direct or indirect financial 

interest that conflicts substantially, or 
appears to conflict substantially, with 
his Government duties and responsibil-
ities; or 

(2) Engage in, directly or indirectly, 
a financial transaction as a result of or 
primarily relying on, information ob-
tained through his Government em-
ployment. 

(b) This section does not preclude an 
employee from having a financial in-
terest or engaging in financial trans-
actions to the same extent as a private 
citizen not employed by the Govern-
ment so long as it is not prohibited by 
law, Executive Order 11222, as amended, 
5 CFR part 735, or this part.

§ 706.205 Misuse of information. 

For the purpose of furthering a pri-
vate interest an employee shall not, ex-
cept as provided in § 706.203(b), directly 
or indirectly use, or allow the use of, 
official information obtained through 
or in connection with his Government 
employment which has not been made 
available to the general public.

§ 706.206 Support of Council programs. 

(a) When a Council program is based 
on law or Executive order, every em-
ployee has a positive obligation to 
make it function as efficiently and eco-
nomically as possible and to support it 
as long as it is a part of recognized 
public policy. An employee may, there-
fore, properly make an address explain-
ing and interpreting such a program, 
citing its achievements, defending it 
against uninformed or unjust criticism, 
pointing out the need for possible im-
provements, or soliciting views for im-
proving it. 

(b) An employee shall not, either di-
rectly or indirectly, use appropriated 
funds to influence a Member of Con-
gress to favor or oppose legislation in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. 1913. However, an 
employee is not prohibited from: 

(1) Testifying as a representative of 
the Council on pending legislation pro-
posals before congressional committees 
on request; provided, that the relevant 
provisions of the current OMB Circular 
A–14 (‘‘Legislation Coordination and 
Clearance’’) are complied with; or 

(2) Assisting congressional commit-
tees in drafting bills or reports on re-
quest, when it is clear that the em-
ployee is serving solely as a technical 
expert under the direction of com-
mittee leadership.

§ 706.207 Use of Government property. 

An employee shall not directly or in-
directly use, or allow the use of, Gov-
ernment property of any kind, includ-
ing property leased to the Government, 
for other than officially approved ac-
tivities. An employee has a positive 
duty to protect and conserve Govern-
ment property including equipment, 
supplies, and other property entrusted 
or issued to him.

§ 706.208 Indebtedness. 

(a) An employee shall pay each just 
financial obligation in a proper and 
timely manner, especially one imposed 
by law, such as Federal, State, or local 
taxes. For the purpose of this section, 
a ‘‘just financial obligation’’ means one 
acknowledged by the employee or re-
duced to judgment by a court or one 
imposed by law such as Federal, State 
or local taxes. 

(b) When an employee has a levy 
placed against his salary for failure to 
pay an indebtedness for Federal income 
taxes, he shall be issued a written rep-
rimand stating that failure to make 
satisfactory arrangements regarding 
future tax liabilities will be grounds 
for removal. 

(c) When an employee is the subject 
of a letter of complaint stating that he 
has not paid his State or local taxes 
and has failed to make satisfactory ar-
rangements regarding the debt, he 
shall be interviewed by the Assistant 
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Director, Division of Program Coordi-
nation and Management. In this inter-
view he shall be instructed to make 
satisfactory arrangements for the pay-
ment of his debt immediately and in-
formed that failure to do so will be 
grounds for removal. 

(d) When an employee is the subject 
of a letter of complaint regarding any 
other kind of indebtedness to a unit of 
government, Federal, State, or local, 
the procedure prescribed in paragraph 
(c) of this section shall be observed. 

(e) When a creditor who holds a legal 
judgment against an employee requests 
that the Council assist in collecting 
the debt, the employee shall be inter-
viewed by the Assistant Director, Divi-
sion of Program Coordination and Man-
agement. In this interview he shall be 
instructed to pay the debt in full with-
in 90 days, or within whatever longer 
period is specified by the Assistant Di-
rector, Division of Program Coordina-
tion and Management if he determines 
that a 90-day limit would impose undue 
hardship on the employee, and in-
formed that failure to do so will be 
grounds for removal. 

(f) When an employee is the subject 
of a letter of complaint from a creditor 
who does not hold a legal judgment 
against the employee, the Assistant Di-
rector, Division of Program Coordina-
tion and Management shall forward a 
copy of the letter to the employee to-
gether with a memorandum calling the 
employee’s attention to the provisions 
of this section. However, the Council 
will not assist the creditor in col-
lecting the debt.

§ 706.209 Gambling, betting, and lot-
teries. 

An employee shall not participate, 
while on Government-owned or leased 
property or while on duty for the Gov-
ernment, in any gambling activity, in-
cluding the operation of a gambling de-
vice, in conducting a lottery or pool, in 
a game for money or property, or in 
selling or purchasing a numbers slip or 
ticket.

§ 706.210 Coercion. 
An employee shall not use his Gov-

ernment employment to coerce, or give 
the appearance of coercing, a person to 
provide financial benefit to himself or 

another person, particularly one with 
whom he has family, business, or finan-
cial ties.

§ 706.211 General conduct prejudicial 
to the Government. 

An employee shall not engage in 
criminal, infamous, dishonest, im-
moral, or notoriously disgraceful con-
duct, or other conduct prejudicial to 
the Government.

§ 706.212 Miscellaneous statutory pro-
visions. 

The attention of each employee is di-
rected to the following statutory provi-
sions: 

(a) House Concurrent Resolution 175, 
85th Congress, 2d Session, 72 Stat. B12, 
the Code of Ethics for Government 
Service. 

(b) Chapter 11 of Title 18, United 
States Code, relating to bribery, graft 
and conflicts of interest. 

(c) The prohibition against lobbying 
with appropriated funds (18 U.S.C. 
1913). 

(d) The prohibitions against dis-
loyalty and striking (E.O. 10450, 18 
U.S.C. 1918). 

(e) The prohibition against the em-
ployment of a member of a Communist 
organization (50 U.S.C. 784). 

(f) The prohibitions against: 
(1) The disclosure of classified infor-

mation (18 U.S.C. 798, 50 U.S.C. 783); 
and 

(2) The disclosure of confidential in-
formation (18 U.S.C. 1905). 

(g) The provision relating to the ha-
bitual use of intoxicants to excess (5 
U.S.C. 7352). 

(h) The prohibition against the mis-
use of a Government vehicle (31 U.S.C. 
638a(c)). 

(i) The prohibition against the mis-
use of the franking privilege (18 U.S.C. 
1719). 

(j) The prohibition against the use of 
deceit in an examination or personnel 
action in connection with Government 
employment (18 U.S.C. 1917). 

(k) The prohibition against fraud or 
false statements in a Government mat-
ter (18 U.S.C. 1001). 

(l) The prohibition against muti-
lating or destroying a public record (18 
U.S.C. 2071). 
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(m) The prohibition against counter-
feiting and forging transportation re-
quests (18 U.S.C. 508). 

(n) The prohibitions against: 
(1) Embezzlement of Government 

money or property (18 U.S.C. 641); 
(2) Failing to account for public 

money (18 U.S.C. 643); and 
(3) Embezzlement of the money or 

property of another person in the pos-
session of an employee by reason of his 
employment (18 U.S.C. 654). 

(o) The prohibition against unauthor-
ized use of documents relating to 
claims from or by the Government (18 
U.S.C. 285). 

(p) The prohibitions against political 
activities in Subchapter III of Chapter 
73 of Title 5, United States Code and 18 
U.S.C. 602, 603, 607, and 608. 

(q) The provision relating to the de-
nial of the right to petition Congress (5 
U.S.C. 7102). 

(r) The prohibition against an em-
ployee acting as the agent of a foreign 
principal registered under the Foreign 
Agents Registration Act (18 U.S.C. 219). 

(s) The prohibition against a public 
official appointing or promoting a rel-
ative, or advocating such an appoint-
ment or promotion (5 U.S.C. 3110). 

(t) The prohibition against the em-
ployment of an individual convicted of 
felonious rioting or related offenses (5 
U.S.C. 7313). 

(u) The tax imposed on certain em-
ployees (e.g., Presidential appointees, 
employees excepted under Schedule C, 
employees in GS–16 or above, or a com-
parable pay level) who knowingly en-
gage in self-dealing with a private 
foundation (26 U.S.C. 4941, 4946). ‘‘Self-
dealing’’ is defined in the statute to in-
clude certain transactions involving an 
employee’s receipt of pay, a loan, or re-
imbursement for travel or other ex-
penses from, or his sale to or purchase 
of property from a private foundation.

Subpart C—Conduct and Respon-
sibilities of Special Govern-
ment Employees

§ 706.301 Use of Government employ-
ment. 

A special Government employee shall 
not use his Government employment 
for a purpose that is, or gives the ap-
pearance of being, motivated by the de-

sire for private gain for himself or an-
other person, particularly one with 
whom he has family, business, or finan-
cial ties.

§ 706.302 Use of inside information. 

(a) A special Government employee 
shall not use inside information ob-
tained as a result of his Government 
employment for private gain for him-
self or another person either by direct 
action on his part or by counsel, rec-
ommendation, or suggestion to another 
person, particularly one with whom he 
has family, business, or financial ties. 
For the purpose of this section, ‘‘inside 
information’’ means information ob-
tained under Government authority 
which has not become part of the body 
of public information. 

(b) A special Government employee 
may engage in teaching, lecturing, and 
writing to the same extent, and subject 
to the same restrictions, as provided in 
§ 706.303(b) for employees.

§ 706.303 Gifts, entertainment, and fa-
vors. 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph 
(b) of this section a special Govern-
ment employee, while so employed or 
in connection with his employment, 
shall not receive or solicit from a per-
son having business with the Council 
anything of value as a gift, gratuity, 
loan, entertainment, or favor for him-
self or another person, particularly one 
with whom he has family, business, or 
financial ties. 

(b) The exceptions from the restric-
tions as set forth in § 706.202(b) for em-
ployees apply in the same manner to 
special Government employees.

§ 706.304 Applicability of other provi-
sions. 

The provisions of §§ 706.206 through 
706.211 apply to special Government 
employees in the same manner as to 
employees.

Subpart D—Statements of Employ-
ment and Financial Interests

§ 706.401 Employees required to sub-
mit statements. 

(a) Employees in the following named 
positions shall submit statements of 
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employment and financial interst to 
the Director: 

(1) Employees in Grade GS–16 or 
above of the General Schedule estab-
lished by the Classification Act of 1949, 
as amended; 

(2) The General Counsel and Adminis-
trative Officer; 

(3) The Staff Specialists assigned to 
review applications by States for plan-
ning grants under Title III of the Water 
Resources Planning Act; 

(4) Special Government employees, as 
defined in § 706.102; and 

(5) Employees classified at GS–13 or 
above under 5 U.S.C. 5332, or at a com-
parable pay level under another au-
thority, who are in positions which the 
Director may determine have duties 
and responsibilites which require the 
incumbent to report employment and 
financial interests in order to avoid in-
volvement in possible conflicts-of-in-
terest situation and carry out the pur-
pose of law, Executive order, and Coun-
cil regulations. 

(b) A statement of employment and 
financial interest is required from the 
Director and shall be submitted by the 
Director to the Chairman of the Coun-
cil.

§ 706.402 Employee’s complaint on fil-
ing requirements. 

An employee who feels that his posi-
tion has been improperly included in 
the list in § 706.401 as one requiring the 
submission of a statement of employ-
ment and financial interests may ob-
tain a review of his complaint under 
the Council’s internal grievance proce-
dure.

§ 706.403 Form of statements. 

An employee required to submit a 
statement of employment and financial 
interests shall submit that statement 
in the format prescribed by the Divi-
sion of Management.

§ 706.404 Time for submission of state-
ments. 

An employee required to submit a 
statement of employment and financial 
intersts by § 706.401 shall submit that 
statement no later than 30 days after 
the date of entrance on duty in the po-
sition covered by § 706.401.

§ 706.405 Supplementary statements. 
Changes in, or additions to, the infor-

mation contained in an employee’s 
statement of employment and financial 
interests shall be reported in a supple-
mentary statement, in the format pre-
scribed by the Division of Management, 
as of June 30 each year. If no changes 
or additions occur, a negative report is 
required. Notwithstanding the filing of 
the annual report required by this sec-
tion, each employee shall at all times 
avoid acquiring a financial interest 
that could result, or taking an action 
that would result in a violation of the 
conflicts-of-interest provisions of sec-
tion 18 U.S.C. 208, or subpart B of this 
part.

§ 706.406 Interests of employees‘ rel-
atives. 

The interests of a spouse, minor 
child, or other member of an employ-
ee’s immediate household are consid-
ered to be interests of the employee. 
For the purpose of this section, ‘‘mem-
ber of a employee’s immediate house-
hold’’ means those blood relations who 
are residents of the employee’s house-
hold.

§ 706.407 Information not known by 
employees. 

If any information required to be in-
cluded on a statement of employment 
and financial interests or on a supple-
mentary statement, including holdings 
placed in trust, is not known to the 
employee but is known to another per-
son, the employee shall request that 
other person to submit the information 
in his behalf.

§ 706.408 Information not required. 
An employee is not required to sub-

mit on a statement of employment and 
financial interests, or on a supple-
mentary statement, any information 
relating to the employee’s connection 
with, or interest in, a professional soci-
ety or a charitable, religious, social, 
fraternal, recreational, public service, 
civic, or political organization or a 
similar organization not conducted as 
a business enterprise. For the purpose 
of this section, educational and other 
institutions doing research and devel-
opment or related work involving 
grants of money from or contracts with 
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the Government are deemed ‘‘business 
enterprises’’ and are required to be in-
cluded in an employee’s statement of 
employment and financial interests.

§ 706.409 Opportunity for explanation 
of conflict or appearance of con-
flict. 

When a statement submitted under 
§ 706.401 indicates a conflict or an ap-
pearance of conflict, between the inter-
ests of an employee and the perform-
ance of his services for the Govern-
ment, the employee concerned shall be 
given an opportunity to explain the 
conflict or appearance of conflict be-
fore remedial action is initiated.

§ 706.410 Confidentiality of statements. 
Each statement of employment and 

financial interests, and each supple-
mentary statement, shall be held in 
confidence and retained in limited ac-
cess files of the reviewing official. The 
use of information on the statements 
shall be limited to that necessary to 
carry out the purposes of this part. In-
formation from a statement or a sup-
plementary statement shall not be dis-
closed except by decision of the Direc-
tor for good cause shown: Provided, 
That information from a statement or 
a supplementary statement of the Di-
rector shall not be disclosed except by 
decision of the Chairman for good 
cause shown.

§ 706.411 Effect of statements on other 
requirements. 

The statements of employment and 
financial interests and supplementary 
statements required of employees are 
in addition to, and not in substitution 
for or in derogation of any similar re-
quirement imposed by law, order, or 
regulation. The submission of a state-
ment or supplementary statement by 
an employee does not permit him or 
any other person to participate in a 
matter in which he or the other per-
son’s participation is prohibited by 
law, order, or regulation.

§ 706.412 Submission of statements by 
special Government employees. 

(a) Each special Government em-
ployee shall submit a statement of em-
ployment and financial interests not 
later than the time of his employment. 

Each special Government employee 
shall keep his statement current 
throughout his period of employment 
by the submission of supplementary 
statements. 

(b) A special Government employee 
shall submit his statement of employ-
ment and financial interests in the for-
mat prescribed by the Division of Man-
agement. The statement will be filed 
with the Division of Management and 
is accorded the confidentiality pre-
scribed in § 706.410. 

(c) The provisions of §§ 706.406 
through 706.411 apply to special Gov-
ernment employees in the same man-
ner as to employees. 

(d) The Director may waive the re-
quirement in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion for the submission of a statement 
of employment and financial interests 
in the case of a special Government 
employee who is not a consultant or an 
expert when he finds that the duties of 
the position held by that special Gov-
ernment employee are of a nature and 
at such a level of responsibility that 
the submission of the statement by the 
incumbent is not necessary to protect 
the integrity of the Government. For 
the purposes of this paragraph ‘‘con-
sultant’’ and ‘‘expert’’ have the mean-
ings given those terms by Chapter 304 
of the Federal Personnel Manual.

§ 706.413 Submission of statements by 
River Basin Commission Chairmen. 

A statement of employment and fi-
nancial interest is not required under 
this part from Chairmen of River Basin 
Commissions created by the President 
pursuant to Title II of the U.S. Water 
Resources Planning Act. The Commis-
sion Chairmen are subject to section 
401 of Executive Order 11222, as amend-
ed, and are required to file a statement 
with the Chairman of the Civil Service 
Commission.
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